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Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Group's ambition Is to be a market leader working closely with local health authonties and private
healthcare providers to delver quality workforce solutions and help them achieve ther abjectives of
delivering world class heallhcare services

Strategy

The Group’s strategy Is 10 align its service delivery to its clients, providing healthcare staff to high
standards of chnical capability In working with clients the Group will develop solutions to deliver
management control and workforce transparency to enable our clients to deploy their workforce efficlently
and cesl effectively

In the UK the NHS Trusts represent a large part of the Group's market, supplemented by local authorities
and private providers [n Austraha the healthcare market has a different structure, being approximately half
public and half private

The UK Group has aligned its service delivery to the NHS through the various framework agreements and
aach of its oparating divisions has a place on most or all of the available frameworks The UK business
has secured a number of Master Vendor and Neutral Vendor contracts deflvered through HCL. Clanty, our
Managed Servicas division

In Australia publc healthcare provision (s arganised by State and the Group Is an approved panel supplier
to all but two of the States in the country

Across the Group our clienls are seeking tachnology solutions  Qur Managed Services division, HCL
Clarlty offers our clients a range of workforce management solutions developed with our technology
partner Skillstream We are able to provide a fully iniegrated solutton from e-rostering to agency
management

On 1 June 2015 the company's subsidiary Healthcare Australia acquired the goodwill and business of
Randstad Care in Australia for consideration of A$5 365 milion  This acquisition cements HCA's number
one position In the Australlan Health & Aged Care market and adds to our capacity, as well as enhancing
our offering to better servica our candidates and clients

Business Review
Group

The Group reparted revenue for the year of £468 Om (2013 £164 7m) and the adjusted EBITDA for the
year was a loss of £0 2m {2013 £1 9m)

The reported loss from continuing operations was £4 8m (2013 £17 6m) after impairment of goodwilll,
intangible assets and excepiicnal operating expenses

The main exceptional cosls (note 6} In the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2014 relate to the reorganisation
and refinancing of the HCL group by replacing the external debt Al loan finance in the Group Is now
provided by the shareholdars of the parent company, Angel Acquisitions Ltd Exceptional costs in 2013
related to the de-lsting of the company, costs associated with nght sizing the business and legal feas

The board monitors performance closely throughout the year The principal financial indicators for
operations are gross margin per head, contribution per head and gross margin conversion 1o contribution

Non financial indicators (nclude conversion of applicants to working locums and compllance with framewoark
requirements

The KPI data as stated above are disclosed m the table below




Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

UK

2014 2013
Gross profit per head £000's 89 70
Contribution per head £000’s 33 25
Gross profit conversion to 37% 36%

contribution

The UK business continued to drive for affictlency throughout 2014 and gross profit per head in operations
increased by 27% (calculated as increase shown above between 2013 and 2014 of £19k over 2013's
figures of £70k), whila contribution per head grew by 32% (calculated as Increase shown above of 2013
and 2014 of £8k over 2013's figure of £25k} Centribution I1s defined as gross profit less divisional costs

The table below summarises UK trading performance

2014 2013

£m £m
Revenue 918 826
Gross Profit 17 9 171
Gross Profit % 18 5% 20 7%
Divisional Costs {11 3) (10 6)
Central Costs {excl depreciation {9 8) (10 6}
& amortisation}
Adjusted EBITDA = UK (30) (4 1)

Cn 22nd December 2014 the trade and fixed assets of MPS Healthcare Ltd, the tocum nursing business
based in Wales, were sold The profit on sale of £0 4m has been included as an exceptional tem (note 6}

Australia
2014 2013
Gross profit per head £000's 87 89
Adjusted EBITDA per head £000’s 17 12
Gross profit conversion to adjusted  20%  13%
EBITDA

The KPI's in the labie above are calculated on the same premise as those defined in the UK The 2014
figures are hased on the presentational currency figures stated below

The Australian business has recovered wall from the downturn in private sector demand expenenced In
2012 and early 2013 Revenue, gross profil, and EBITDA all grew on a constant currancy basis

The table below summarises trading performance 1n Australia

Pag: |3




Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Praesentational Constant Prior year
currency Currency

2014 2014 2013

£m £m £m
Revenue 762 886 821
Gross Profit 140 163 16 1
Gross Profit % 18 4% 18 4% 19 6%
Operating Expenses {excluding {(112) (130) (139)
depreciatton & amortisation)
Adjustied EBITDA - Austraha 28 33 22

Capital Structure

The company's capttal structure consists of ordinary and preference shares owned by its parent, Angel
Acquisitions Lid, preference shares owned by Ares Capital Group (Luxembourg) SARL (Ares), £56 1m of
zero coupon loan notes also owned by Ares and 8% loan notes held by Angel Acquisitions Ltd

in August 2014, Tosca Opportunity (Tosca) and Ares, the owners of Angel Acquisitions, provided loan
capital to the Group to repay A$18 7m (£10 3m) of the then outstanding A$57 Om (£31 5m) syndicated
faciliies agreement Tosca and Ares purchased the balance of the facility These facilities are currently
ropayable by 31st December 2017

On 15 June 2015, the company entered into a2 3 year £18m nvoice financing facility Healthcare Australia
Pty Limited I1s expecled to complete a similar 3 year, A$20m facility early August 2015 The purpose of
these faciliies 1s to enable the repayment of the loan made by the shareholders of Angel Acguisitions
Limited in August 2014 and to provide working capital faciiities to fund future growth

These transactions will leave the Group's capital structure in a more stable position Further details of the
Company's funding structure can be found In notes 16 and 19 of the financial statements

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Board considers the pringipal nsks facing the business as part of the annual budgeting process

The principal nsks and uncertanties currently judged to have the largest potential impact on the Group's
financial performance and reputational standing are described below

Risk
Availability of Finance

The Group 1s dependent on the continuing availability of finance from its parent company, Angel
Acguistions Limited In August 2014 the shareholders of Angel Acquislilons loaned the Company £16 Tm
to fund part repayment of varlous bank loans and purchased the remaimnmg Ioan from the banks This
£16 1m loan Is due for repayment by 31st December 2017 and carries no financial covenants The invoice
finance faciity recently completed in the UK, together with that soon to complete facihly in Australia,
ensures the Group has adequate financing for the foreseeable future

Relationships with Key Customers

Customer relationships and comphiance with contract terms are essential to the Group's performance In
the UK the majonty of the Group's revenue comes from the NHS through the framework agreements In
Australia the Group 1s an approved "Panel” supplier of agency nurses to the publc health system Both
public and private sector centracts in the UK and Austraha contain Key Performance Indicator targets and
may include termination rights i targets are not met

PaLe |4




Healthcare Locums Limited

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Clinica! Governance and Compliance

The Group has cbligations under contracts and In some circumstances under legislation to supply locums
to specified standards of clinical capability and to make checks before lacums are placed inroles These
Compliance requirements are extensive 1n many cases Failure to complete and maintain those checks
could lead io legal, financial and reputational consequences

IT Systems and Security

The Group relies on computer systems to dsliver its services to customers Any material disruption to
these systems will impact revenues, as lost tima for locum supplies cannot be replaced

Exchange Rate

The Group's operations are located in the UK and Australia Local revenues are accounted for in local
currency The presentational currency of the Group 1s Sterling

The Sterling value of the Australian resulls depends on the excharge rate used to franslate the results of
overseas operations The Group’s bank debt, which was settied in August 2014, was denominated in
Australian Dollars and the Sterling value fluctuates with the exchange rate to Sterling  Foreign exchange
risk 1s described mors fully in Note 18

Potential Impact from Past Events, including Litigation

As described 1n Note 22 a claim by certain US Investors has been filed in the State of New York aganst the
Company and certain of its former directors and default judgement obtained

Whilst the Board has been advised that 1s unlikely any judgement would be recognised as enforceable Iin
enher the UK or Australia because of a lack of junsdiction, should this advice be incorrect, an adverse
ruling could result in a material loss for the Group

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

M0

I M Ketchin
Director
23 July 2015
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Heaithcare Locums Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group and each of the trading subsidiaries ts that of providing workforce
solutions to the healthcare and social care sectors The Board's intention ts that this will remain the
businass of the Group for the foreseeable future

The principal subsidiary undentakings affecting the profits or net assets of the Group in the year are listed
in Note 31 to the Financial Statements as well as other dormant and non trading members of the group

Future Developments

All future developments are covered In the Strategic Report

Dividends

No dlvidends were paid in 2014 and the Directors are not proposing a final dwidend for 2014
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's objectives and pelicies in respect of financial nsk management and assoclated nsks are set
out in Note 19, Financial Instruments

Disabled Persons

The Group's and the Company's policy 1s to consider the applications of disabled workers for those
vacancies that they are able to fill All necessary assistance with initial training courses 1s given Once
employed, a career plan Is developed so as to ensure sultable opportunities for each disabled person
Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for retraming employees who become disabled, to snable
them to perform work identified as appropriate to theiwr aptitudes and abililies

Employee Involvement

The Group's policy Is to consull and discuss with employees and employee engagement forums on matters
lIkely to affect employees' interests Healthcare Locums Ltd has an employee forum that meets
penodically to consider such matters  Information on matters of concern o employees 1s given through
information bulletins and reporls which seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees
of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance

Going Concern

The Company's and Group’s strategy, business activities and review, together with the factors likely to
affect Its future development, performance and financial posltion are set out in the Strategic Report on
pages 2 {0 5 The improved capital structure following the August 2014 purchase and extenslon 1o 31
December 2017 of the Group's syndicatad facilities agreement by the owners of Ange! Acquisitions 1s set
out In the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 5 Together with the £18m invoice finance facility recently
completed in the UK and the A$20m facllly soon to complete in Australia, the Group has adequate
financing for the foreseeabla fulure Principal nsks and uncertainties are described on pages 4 to 5 In
addition, the Group has certain contingent labilities, as descnbed in Note 22 to these financial stalements

The Group prepares regular business forecasts and monitors its projected cash flow requirements The
forecasts are reviewed by the Board They are then flexed to reflect more conservalive views on revenues
and margins, and take Into account management actions which could be taken to contain cosis in these
circumsiances

Parpe |6




Healthcare Locums Limlited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

These forecasts Indicate that the Group plans to cperate within its current facilities for the foreseeable
future, being a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of this financial Information  The
forecasts, however, assume no llability in respect of the US litigation dunng the review penod, nor in
respect of any of the other contingent iabilities described in Note 22

Hawving taken account of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expeciation that the Company and the
Group will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable

future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of aceounting in prepanng the annual financal
statements

Directors

The Directors who served during the year and to the date of this report, together with the date they were
appointed if during the year ware as follows -

Date of

appointment (if

after 29 December
Directar Positton 2013)

Peter Sullivan Nen-axecutive Chairman -
Stephean Burke Chief Executive QOfficar -
Jason Cartwright Chief Executive Officer Australia -

lan Ketchin Chief Financial Officer 4 March 2014
Mark Phillips Non-exacutive Director -
Michael Dennis Non-executive Director -
Danie! Sinclarr Nen-gxecutive Director -

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance

Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries benefit from Directors’ and Officers' iability
insurance cover in respect of legal actions brought against them [n addition, Directors of the Company are
indemnified in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Assogiation, to the maximum extent permitted by
law Nailher the iInsurance nor the iIndemnities provide cover where the relevant Director or Officer has
acted fraudulently or dishonestly The US liigation, agalnst the Company and its former directors, as
referred lo In Note 22, may not be covered under the existing Directors’ and Officers' liability insurance
cover This s because the Plaintiffs' arguments revolve around the alleged dishonesty or misleading
conduct of former directors None of the current Directors are a party to this claim

Related Party Transactions

Detalls of related party transactlons, including transactions with close famiy members of former direclors,
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements

Disclosure of Audit Information

As required by Seclion 418 (2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that, as al the
date this report was approved, so far as each Director 15 aware there 15 no ralevant audit information of
which the Indepsndent Auditor 1s unaware and that they have laken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that the
Independent Auditor 1s aware of that Information




Healthcare Locums Limited

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Auditor

In accordance with section 485 of the companies act 2008, a resolution 1s to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeling for the reappomntment of Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditors Marc Summers 1s the
Senior Statutory Auditor

Cautionary Statement

A Company's Annual Report 1s required, among other matters, to contain a far review by the Directors of
the Group's business, through a balanced and comprehensive analysis of the development and
performance of the business of the Group and the posiion of the Group at the year end, consistent with the
size and complexity of the business The Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared
only for the shareholders of the Company as a whols, and their sole purpose and use Is to assist
shareholders to exercise ther governance nghts In particular, the Directors' Report, and the Strategic
Report have not been audited or otherwise independently venfied The Company and Its Directors and
employees are not responsible for any other purpose or use or to any other person in relation to the Annual
Report

These Reports and Statements contain indications of likely future developments and other forward-looking
slatements that are subject to nsk factors assocated with, among cther things, the economic and business
clreumstances occurring from time to time In the countries, sectors and business segments in which the
Group cperates Thess factors include, but are not limited to, those discussed under Principal Risks and
Uncertainties in the Strategic Report

These and other factors could adversely affect the Group's results, strategy and prospects Forward-
looking statements involve nsks, uncertamties and assumptions They relate to events and/or depend on
crrcumstances in the future which could cause actual results and outcomes to differ matenally from those
currently anticipated No obligation 1s assumed to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise

Approved by the Board and slgned on its behalf by

MG

I M Ketchin
Director
23 July 2015




Healthcare Locums Limited

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The direclors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and Repori of the Directors and the
financial statemenls in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors lo prepare financlal statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors have elacted o prepare the financiat stataments in accordance with International Flnancial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unton Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affarrs and profit or loss of the company and group for that penod In preparng these financlal
statements, the directors are required to

. select sultable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+  IFRSs have been followsd, subject to any malerial departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements, and
prepare the financial statemenis an the going concern basis unless il Is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in busliness

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
posiiion of the company and enable them to ensure that the financlal statements comply with the
Companies Act 2008 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud and other irregularites

The diractors confirm that
+  So far as each director (s aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the company's
auditor 1s unaware, and
. the directors have taken ail the steps that they ought ta have taken as dirsctors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the company's auditor is
aware of that information

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislatien in other |unisdictions

To the best of our knowledge
. the group financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give a true and falr view of the assets, labilities, financial posiion and profit or loss of the
company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and
+  the strategic report, mcludes a fair review of the development and perfarmancs of ihe business
and the position of the company and the undertakings Included In the consolidation taken as a
whole, logether with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

AT —

| M Ketchin
Director
23 July 2015
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Healthcare Locums Limited i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED

We have audited the financial stalements of Healthcare Locums Limlted for the 52 weeks ended 28 ]

December 2014 which compnse censclidated statement of comprahensive income, consolidated statement
of financlal position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes n equity,
notes 1o the financlal statements and the parent company balance sheet The financial reporiing
framework that has been applied in the preparalion of the Group financial statements |s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s
apphcable law and Unltad Kingdem Accounting Standards {Unlteg Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely lo the company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility ko anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page &, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financlal statements and for baing satisfied that they glve a true and
fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable Yaw and International Standards on Auditing (UK end Ireland) These standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audlt of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audi of financlal statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on fInanclal statements
In our opinion

+  the financial statements give a trua and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company's affarrs as at 28 December 2014 and of the group's loss for the 52 weeks then ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Unian,

+ the parent company fintancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted
Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice, and

« the financlal statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008

Opnion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the infermation given In the strateglc report and the report of the directors for the financial
year for which the Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial
statements

Pa,e |10




Healthcare Locums Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, n our opinion

+  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+  the parent company financlal statements are not in agresment with the accounting records and
returns, or

«  certan disclosures of directors' remuneration spacifled by law are not made, or

+  we have not recetved all the information and explanatlons we require for our audit

mo«c, S\u-nm ey

Mare Summers, FCA

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

23 July 2015
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2014

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Revenue 168 0 164 7
Cost of sales {136.1) (131 5)
Gross profit 319 332
Operating expenses {35 8) (40 1)
Highlighted items
Goodwill and intangible assets imparrment 11,12 - {81)
Net exceptional operating expenses 6 {09) {2 6)
Total operating expensas (36 7) (50 8)
Loss from operations 7 {4.8) (17 B8)
Fmance income 8 03 06
Finance expense 8 (34) (59)
Loss before taxation from continuing operations (79) {22 9)
Tax {charge)benefit from continuing operations 9 (13) o1
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (9 2) (22 B)
Other comprehensive income.
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit & loss
Translation adjustment 07 32
Total other comprehensive income 0.7 32
|
Total comprehenslve loss for the year attributable to the |
owners of the parent (8 5) (19 6) i

The Consolidated Stalement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared on the basis that all operations are cantinulng

The Notes are an inlegral par of these Financlal Slatements

Papi
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 28 DECEMBER 2014

28 December

29 December

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwtll 11 104 11
Other intangible assets 12 210 247
Property, plant and equipment 13 1.0 14
324 372
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables 14 235 197
Current tax recelvable 01 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 86 49
322 251
Total assets 64 & 52 3
LIABILITIES
Current llabities
Trade and other payables 15 (16.7) (17 5)
Current portion of long term borrowings 16 - 7
Derivative financial instruments 19 - {0 8)
Deferred consideration 17 - (02)
Provisions 17 {1.8) (20}
(18.5) (210)
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings 16 {44 5) {32 2)
Deferred tax liability 18 (4 1) (28)
Provisions 17 (10) (13)
(49 6) (36 3)
Total habilitles (68 1) (57 3)
TOTAL NET (LIABILITIES) | ASSETS (3 5) 50
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
PARENT
Share capital 20 107 3 105 3
Share premium reserve 21 552 552
Equity reserve 21 {14 9) (12 9)
Translation reserve 21 41 34
Retained loss 21 (155.2) {146 Q)
TOTAL EQUITY (39 50

The Notes are an intagral pari of these Financial Stalements

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2015

and were signed on its behalf by

@0

I M Ketchin
Director
Company number 04736913

L}
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2014

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year {9.2) {22 8)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 05 10
Amortisation of Intangible assels 32 40
Profit on disposal of Intangible assets (0.4) -
Goodwill impairment . 59
Impairment of other intangible assets . 22
Finance income (0.3) (0 6)
Finance expense 34 59
Corporation lax charge / {credit) 13 (01)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working
capital (15) (4 5)
Changes n receivables (39) 21
Changes in payables {0 3) (2 4)
Cash used in operations {57) (48)
Corporation tax received _ 05 -
Net cash flows used In operating activities _ {5.2) {4 8)
Investing activities
Disposal of MPS trade and assats 1.6 -
Disposal of intangible fixed assets 04 .
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 02 -
Capitaf element of lease payments - {0 1)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (0.4) (0 4)
Acquisition of intangible assets (07) {10}
Net cash generated by / (used i) investing activitles 11 {158)
Financing activities
Cash received from shareholders in respect of preference shares issue - 60
Repayment of borrowings {10 5) (0 8)
New loans 212 -
Interest and similar expenses paid (2 9) (36)
Net cash from / {used in) financing actlvities 78 16
Net {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 37 {47}
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year 49 93
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents - 03
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 86 49

B, 0t |14
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Healthcare Locums Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
Share Share option Equity Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve loss Total
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m

Balance at 30
December 2012 848 552 12 - 02 (124 4) 170
Preference shares
converted from loan
notes 205 - - - - - 205
Preference share
conversion equity
reserve - - - {12 9} - (129)
Transactions with
owners 205 - - {12 9} - 76
Loss for the year - - - - - (22 8) (22 8}
Share option reserve
transferrad - {(12) - 12 -
Other comprehenstve
ncome - - 32 - 32
Balance at 29
December 2013 1053 552 - {12 9) 34 {146 0) 50
Preference sharas
converted from loan 20 - - (2.0} - -
notes
Transactions with
owners 2.0 - - {2 0) - - -
Loss for the year . - - . - (92) (9.2)
Other comprehensive
income - - - . 07 - 07
Balance at 28 1073 55 2 - (1a9) 4.1 (155 2) (3.5)

December 2014

The Notes are an Integral part of these Financlal 51alements




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Heaithcare Locums Ltd 1s a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 ("the
Act”) The registered office 1s 10 Cld Balley, London EC4M 7NG The nature of the Group’s operations and s
principal activities are set out in the Report of the Directors on page 6 to 8 and In the Strategic Review on pages 2
to 5

The primary financlal statements and the majornity of figures in the notes are presented in Pounds Sterling {"£")
because that 1s the currency of the prnimary economic environment in which the Group operates Whare it 1s
considered useful and appropriate, certain figures for the operations of the Australian business are disclosed in
the notes In Australian Dollars ("A%")

Overseas operations are Included In accordance with the policies set out in Note 3

The Group's accounting peried 15 52 weeks anding on the Sunday closest to 31 December Some reporting
perieds in the future will be 53 week periods This ensures the statutory reporting tmetable i1s in [ine with the
management reporting cycle

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New standards and interpretations currently in Issue (as at 21 July 2015) but not effective, based on
EU mandatory effective dates, for accounting periods commaeancing on 1 January 2014 are

IFRS § Financial Instruments (IASB effective date 1 January 2018)4

IFRS 14 Regulatory Defarral Accounts (effective 1 January 2016)24

IFRS 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 20172

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IASB effecilve 1 January 2014y##

Defined Benefit Plans Employee Ceontribubions (Amendments to [AS 19) (IASB effective date 1
July 2014)$%

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Jaint Operations (IASB
effective date 1 January 2016)¢°

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments to IAS 16
and lAS 38 (IASB effective date 1 January 2016}

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (IASB effective date generally 1 July 2014)$%
- Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (IASB effective date 1 July 2014)@@

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (effective 1 January 2016)**

- Amendments to IAS 16 and |IAS 41 Bearer Plants {effective 1 January 2016)**

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Msthod in Separate Financial Statements (effective 1 January
2016)7

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture —
Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 (effective 1 January 2016)*é¢€

The standards IFRS 10,11 and 12 became effective for the current accounting period Their
intreduction has resulted in no change to the financials Those standards detailed above that are yet
to come inte effect are not expected to have any impact when adopted

& Not adopted by the EU (as at 21 July 2015)

#H EU mandatory effective date 15 financial years starting on or after 17 June 2014

3§ EU mandatory effective dste is financial years starting on or after 1 February 2015

@@ EU mandatory effective date 18 financial yoars slarting on or after 1 January 2016

€€ Not hkely to be adoptad in its current form as the IASH 15 redeliberaiing this ssue
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of accounting

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union ("EU")

The Consclidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the histonical cost basis, except for dernvatlve
financial Instruments which are stated at their far value Historical cost is generally based on the far value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets The principal accounting polictes adopted are set out below

(b} Basls of consolidation

The Consoclidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidianes) made up to the Sunday closest to 31 December each year Control Is achieved
where the Company has the power lo govern the financial and operating polictes of an investee enhty so as to obtain
benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income fram the effective date of acquisitron or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary
the accounting policles of subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on censolidation

{c} Going concern

The Company's and Group's strategy, business activittes and rewiew, together with the factors likely to affect its
future development, performance and financial position are set out In the Strategic Report on pages 210 5 The
improved capital structure following the August 2014 purchase and extension to 31 December 2017 of the Group's
syndicated facilties agreement by the owners of Angel Acquisitions 1s set out In the Strategic Report on pages 210 5
Together with the £18m invoice finance facility recently completed in the UK and the A$20m facility soon to complete
In Austraha, the Group has adequate financing for the foraseeable future Prmeipal risks and uncertainties are
descrnbed on pages 4 to 5 In addition, the Group has certain contingent hiabilites, as described in Note 22 to these
financial statements

The Group prepares regular business forecasls and monitors its projected cash flow requirements These forecasts
are reviewed by the Board The forecasts are then flexed to reflect more conservatlve vlews on revenues and
margins, and take Into account management actions which could be taken to contaln costs in these circumstances

These forecasts Indicate that the Group plans to operate within iis current facihties for the foreseeable future, being a
period of at least twetve months from the date of approval of this financial information The forecasts, howeaver,
assume no hability in respect of the US Iitigation duning the review period, ner in respect of any of the other
contingent llabilites described In Note 22

Having taken account of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
will have access to adequate resources 10 continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of acceunting in preparnng the annuat flnancial statements

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidlarnies and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The consideration for
each acquisition ts measured al the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisltion
related costs are expensed as incurred

Whera applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or lability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date far value Subsequent changes in such fair values are
adjusted against the cost of acquisitton where they qualify as measurement period adjustments (sea below) All other
subsequent changes In the fair value of contingent cansideration classified as an asset or llability are accounted for
In accordance with relevant IFRSs Changes in the falr value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not
recognised

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, llabities and contingent llabihties that meet the conditions for recognition under
IFRS 3(2008) are recognised at ther far value at the acquisilion date, except that

» deferred tax assets or habiiies and labilities or assets related to employee bensfit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes and IAS 19 - Employse Benefils
respechively, and

« labilites or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards are measured in accardance with IFRS 2 — Share-based Paymant

The measurement period 1s the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete
information about facts and clrcumstances that existed at the acquisiion date, and 15 subject to a maximum of one
year
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amounts earned from the pravision of services to external customers during the reporting
period ~ the time of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be measured rehably
and when It 1s probable that the econemic benefits will flow to the Group Revenue Is stated at invoiced amounts iess
value added tax or local taxes on sales, plus revenue earned but unbitled which 1s included as accrued income In
trade and other receivables

+  Revenue from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff, i1s
recognised when the services have been provided Revenue includes the salary costs of the temporary staff
unless paid directly by the client in which case revenue represents commission only, and

» Revenue from permanent placements Is recognised at the date when a candidate commences work
Appropriate provision 1s made for the expected cost of meeting obligations where employees do not work for
the specified coniractual period

(f) Forelgn currency

On consolidalion, the rasults of overseas operations are translated into Sierling at average rates All assets and
liabilities of overseas operations, including goodwill arising on the acquisition of those operations, are translated at
the rate ruling at the period end  All exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised in the Consohlidated
Statement of Other Camprehensive Income and accumulatsd in the translation reserve

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currancies other than the entity’s
funclional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchangs prevailing at the dates of the
transactions At the end of each reporting penod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencles are retranslated
at the rates prevalling at that date Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the far value was determined Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

() Employee benefits

Contributions to the Group's defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income In the perlod in which they become payable

The habihty for Long Service Leave In respect of employees in Ausiralia 1s racognised by way of a provision and
measured at the present value of expected fulure payments {o be made 1n respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting perlod using the projacted unit credit method Consideration Is given 1o
expeacted future wage and salary levels, experlence of employee departures and penods of service Expected futura
benefits payable more than 12 months afier the period-end are drscounted using market yieids at the end of the
reporting penod on national government bonds with terms to matunty and currency that maich, as closely as
passible, the estimated fulure cash outflows Where data specific enough to calculate a provision as described above
18 not avallable, proviston is made for Long Service Leave on an estimated basis (Note 17)

{h) Taxation

The charge for current laxation 1s provided at rates of corporation tax that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date Current tax I1s based on taxable profits for the year and any adjustments to tax payable
In respect of previous years Taxable proflt differs from net profit as reporied in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of mcome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never laxable or deductible

Deferred tax s provided, using the hability method, on all temporary differences which result in an obligation at the
reporting date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less lax, at a future date, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date Temporary differances arise between the tax bases of
assets and habilittes and their carrying amounts i the financiat statements The exceptions, where deferred tax
assels are not racognised nor deferred tax liabities provided, are

. at tnitial recognition of goodwill,

*  theinibial recognstion of an asset or llabifity in a transaction that Is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss, and
« taxable ternporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes where the Uiming af the reversal of

the temporary difference can be controlled and it ts probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewsd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent thal it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitabis to allow ail or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utiised
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
i Goodwill

Goodwili arising in a business combination I1s recognised as an asset at the dale that conlrol 15 acquired (the
acquisition data) Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest {(f any} In
the entity over the net of the acquisiion-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the llabilities assumed
if after reassessment, the Group's tnterest In the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the falr value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest In the acquiree {If any), the excess ts recognised immediately In the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a bargaln purchase gain

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwll is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating urits expscted to benefit from the synergies of the
cambination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for tmpairment annually, or more
frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount, being the value in
use or — where reliably measurable - fair value less costs to sell, of the cash-generating unitis less than the carrying
armount of the und, the Imparrment loss Is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwilt aliocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
An imparrmeant loss recogmsed for goodwill 1s not reversed 1n a subseguent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the alinbutable amount of goodwill i1s included in the determinalion of the profit or loss on
disposal
(J) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets (other than goodwlll) acquired by the Group as part of a business comblnation are stated al fair
value and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, commencing on the date they come
into use The amortisation 1s shown as part of operating expenses within the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehenslve Income

internally generated intangible assets arsing from the Group's development of software are recognised only if all of
the following condiions are met

*  an asset 1s created that can be identified,
it 1s probabie thal the assel created will generate future economic benefits, and

the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably
The estimated useful ives are as follows

Customer relationships - OQver the contractual term or 6 years in the absence of a specified
term

Computer sofiware - 3to5years

Acquired candidate database - 3to 10 years

Brands/trademarks 20 years

Non-compete agraements - byears

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, with indefinite lives are subject to impairment tests whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that thelr carrying amount may not be recoverable  When the carrymng amount of
an asset exceeds Iis recaverable amount, being the value in use or — where reliably measurable - far value less
cosls to sell, the asset is written down accordingly Impairment of other Intangible assets is included n {otal operating
expenses as a highiighted item i the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income

(k) Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost As well as the purchase price, cost includes
directly atinbutable costs Ail items are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment loss

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of property, plant
and equipment over thewr expected useful lives It 1s calculated at the following rates

Improvements 1o leasehold buldings - QOver the Isase term
Office and computer equipment - 3to 8 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

An asset's carrying amount I1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount s greater
than its estimated recoverable amount Impairment reviews are carrigd out quarterly throughout the year
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{) Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset Is assessed al each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that itis
impaired A financial asset 1s considerad to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events has
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset For cerlain categorles of financial assets, such
as trade recevables, assels that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collactive basis Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past expenence of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments In the portfolio, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaulls on receivables

The carrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financlal assets with the
excaption of trade recewvables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account
When a trade receivable s considered uncollectible, it is writien off against the allowance account Subsequent
recoverios of amounts previously written ¢ff are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the profit and loss

{m) Leased assets

Whera substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been transferrad to
the Group (a 'finance lease'), the asset 1s treated as if it had been purchased cutnght The amount intially
recognised as an asset Is the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments payable over the term of the lease, each determtned at the inception of the lease The corresponding
lease commitment Is shown in the Consolidated Statament of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are appaitioned batween finance expensas and reduction of the finance lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in the profit or loss

All other leases are treated as operating leases Therr annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss account on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease

(n) Sales ledger credits

From $imse to time in the United Kingdom the Group receives payments which are in excess of the amounts which the
Group's accounting records show as due The reasons mclude duplicate payments, credit notes not taken by
customers and payments by customers who are "self billing" which are higher than our calculation of the amounts
due These malters are investigated and wherever possible the overpayments are resclved wilh the paying client and
appropriale accounting entries made If, after actively sesking to resolve the balance, it remains unresolved bayond
the perlod set out in the Statute of Limitations (six years), the amount 1s crediled to the profit or loss The balance of
sales ledger credits at the pernod end 15 shown within craditors

(o) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liablilities are recognised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position when the
Group becomes a panly to the contractual provision of the instrument

The Group classifies its financlal assets and liabilities into one of the following categories, depending on the purpose
for which the asset or habilily was acquired  The Group's accounting policy for each category 1s as follows

Financial assets,

Recewvables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They anse principally through the provision of services to customers (trade recervables) They are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently at amortised cost Impalrment provisions are
recognised where there Is evidence that the Group will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms of
the receivable Trade recelvables are raporied net of imparment provisions, which due to the nature of the customer
base are not significant The Group's recevables that are financial assets compnse trade and other receivables,
exciudlng prepayments, in the Consohidated Statement of Financial Position

Cash and cash equivalents include cash Iin hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafls Bank
overdrafts are shown within current habllities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesition and are included
within cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the Consolidaled Statement of Cash Flows

Derivative financial Instruments.

Denvatives, including the embedded derivative within the Zero Coupon Loan Nole, are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair vaiue through
the profit and loss unless the derivative 1s designated in a hedging relationship

There were no new derivative financial instriuments entered Into during the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2014 that
were effective hedges and therefore hedge accounting was not applied
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other financlal llabilities

Trade payables and other short-ferm monetary habifities These are Initally recognised at fair value and
subsequenily at amortised cost

Zero coupon foan notes These are Initially recogrised at fair value, being the present value at the time of 1ssue of
future cash payments to extinguish the instrument They are subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with Interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

8% coupon loan notes These are inthially recognised at nominal value at the date of issue Interest In then charged
using the effective interest rate method thal compounds the loan note balance over the penod of time until the loan
note matures

The effective interest method 1s a method of caicufating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of aliocating
interast aver the relevant period The effective interest rate Is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial hability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on imitial recognition

Bank and other borrowings These llabilities are inibally recognised at the amount advanced net of any transaction
cosls directly attnbutable to the 1ssus of the instrument The costs of raising the financing ere offset against the loan
amount and are amortised over the term of the loan and are included within finance costs on the face of the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income When loans are refinanced, drawings under the existing facilities
are either extinguished or modified Where facihties are extinguished the balance of unamortised fees are wntten off
o Finance Expense Where modified, the unamortised fess are carried forward in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position to be written off over the term of the modified faclities

{r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obiigation {legal or consiructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obllgation

The amount recognised as a provislon Is the best estimate of the consideration required to sett'e the present
obhgation at the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash flows esttmated to settle the
present obhigation, its carrying amount I1s the present value of those cash flows

Obligations ansing under onerous conlracts are recogntsed and measured as provisions An onerous contract Is
considered to exist where the Group has a coniract under which the unaveidable costs of meeiing the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be recewed under

A restructunng provision 1s recogrused when the Group has developed a detalled formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised a vahd expectation In those affected that it will carry out the restructuning by starting to implement the
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it The measurement of a restructuring provision includes
only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necassarily
entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the Group

Contingent iabilitles are possible obligations which anse from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ona or more uncertan future events not wholly within the control of the
Group Provision 1s not made for any hability which could arise in the future, but significant contingant liabiities are
reported 1n Note 22

{g) Share capltal

Financial mstruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not mest the definition
of a financial liabiity The Group's ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity instruments

{r) Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared and approved by the Company's
shareholders in the annual general meeting Intenm dividends are recognlsed when they are paid

(s) Parentcompany

The Financlal Statements of the parent company Healthcare Locums Limited have been prepared in accordance with
UK GAAP The Company Financial Statements are presented separately on pages 42 to 52

(t} Highlighted items

Where certain items of operating expense or income recorded in a period are matenal by their size or incidence, the
Group reflects such items as highlighted items and these are shown separately In the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income and disclosed in detail in the Notes to the Financtal Statements Highlighted items may
include cosls associated with restruciuring the business, Incremental costs of staff working directly on restructuring
and refinancing, one off gains and losses, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets In addition amounts of

finance income or expense which are matenial by their size or incidence are disclosed in detail in the Notes to the
Financial Statements
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Adjusted operating profit and adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted operating profit 1s operating profit before highlighted items The Board considers adjusted operating profit to
be a better Indicator of performance than operating profit as highlighted items, being exceptional in their nature by
virtue of size or incidence, distort the results of the underlying business Adjusted EBITDA Is adjusted operating profit
before charging depreciation and amortisation

(v) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and
assumptions The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrylng amounts of assets and llabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Measurement of mtangible assets The allocation of the purchase price for acquisitions requires management
to make significant estmates in determining fair values, especially for intangible assels and, until finally
dstermined, contingent consideration These estimates are based on historical expenience, information
obtained from the management of the acquired businasses, relevant market and industry data and the forecast
performancs of the acquired businesses These estimates can include, but are not limlted to, the cash flows
that an asset I1s expected to generate In the future, the appropriate discount rate and the useful lives of
intanglible assets These estimates are inherently uncertain and unanticipated events and circumstances may
occur, which may affect the accuracy or validity of such estimates To assist In making these significant
estimates the Company engages expert professional valuers to assist with matenat acquisitions Management
menitors the carrying values of assets and adjustments are made If anticipated future market conditions
indicate that such adjustments are appropriate

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets The Group 1s required to tesi, on at least an annual basis,
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amount is determined based on the higher of
value In use calculations or the farr value less costs to sell method These both require the estimation of future
cash flows and the choice of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows Actual
outcames may vary More information on the carrying amount of goodwill is included in Note 11 and 12

Contractual claims and regulatory contingencles The Graup conducts its business principally in the UK and
Australia and contractual claims or regulatory procesdings may arise The Group estimates and provides for
potential losses that may anse out of iigation and regulatory proceedings to the extent that such losses are
probable and can be estimated In accordance with |AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabiitles and Contingent
Assets Contingencies In respect of these matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of
Individual matters Is not predictable with assurance Significant judgment is required In assessing probability
and making estimates in respect of contingencies, and the Group's final llability may ultimately be materally
different from that estimated Provisions in respect of legal claims, contractual and regulatory proceedings are
determined on a case by case basis and represent an estimate of probable losses after considering, among
other factors, the progress of each case, the Group's expernence of others in similar cases and the views of
legal counse! Where no estmate can be relably made of the likely outcome of any claims, and they are
potentially materlal, those claims are disclosed as contingent llabihties (Note 22)

Uncertain tax positions Uncertain tax positions may anse where the Direclors have had to make particular
judgments In relation {o certain lax treatments Based on the status of enquines with the relevant tax authorities
and consideration of tax legisiation, the Group estimates and provides for potential tosses that may arise from
uncertain iIncome tax positions to the extent that such losses are probable and can be estimated, in
accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxas However, significant judgment I1s required in making these estimates,
particularly in refation to the recovery of losses, and the Group's final habihties may ultimately be matenatly
different

Estimation of useful economic hves of long-ived assets The economic hfe used to amortise intangible assets
and depreciate property, plant and equipment relates to the future performance of the assets In question and
management's judgment of the penod over which the economic benefit will be derived from the asset

As al 28 December 2014, the amount of property, plant and equipmaent included in the Consohdated Statement
of Financial Position was £1 Om (2013 £1 4m)

As at 28 December 2014, the amount of intangible assets included in the Consoldated Statement of Financial
Position was £21 0m (2013 £24 7m)

Employee benefits provision In Australia employees, including locums, are entitled lo long service leave after
10 years service (subject to specific rules and condibions which vary state by state) in determining the amount
of the employes benefits provision, representing the value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the date of the Consalidated Statement of Financial Position, the

Directors consider salary levels, the past experence of employee departures and periods of service As at 28

December 2014, the amount provided for in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position was £2 1m
{2013 £2 2m) (Note 17)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Zero Coupon Loan Notes The Zero Coupon Loan Notes were Issuad during 2011 as part of a Refinancing
The nominal value of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to far value at a rate of 15% which the
Directors considered falrly represented the return a non-senior lender would seek from the Company for a loan
maturing in September 2021 The Zero Coupon Loan Notes include an embedded derivative, Note 19, which
could lead to the 1ssue of further Zere Coupon Loan Notes for nil consideration The Directors assessed at the
date of 1ssue and at all subsequent reporting dates the likelhood of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes being
iIssued if future EBITDA or enterprise value targets are achieved

8% Coupon Loan Notes The 8% Coupcn Loan Notes were inibially issued during 2013 as part of the
Refinancing agreement which were followed by subsequent 1ssues during 2014 when the nead for working
capital arose The nominal value of the 8% Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to falr value at a rate of
approximately 18% which the Directors considered fairly represented the relurn a non-sanor lender would
seek from the Company for a loan matunng in September 2021 The agreement for the issus of the 8% loan
notes Includes detalls to convert into preference shares at a rate of £2 per £1 of loan note nomlinal value plus
any imputed interesl at the time of conversion The conversion was to be completed mandatorily six months
after the Issue of the loan notes as long as the external bank debt held in the Australian subsidiary was in
existence The bank loan was settled during 2014 and the loan notes 1ssued dunng the year were not
converied No gain or loss was recognised in the profit or loss

Shareholder Loans The shareholder loans were Issued during 2014 to enable the group to negotiate a
settlement of the outstanding lcan amounts owed to two Australian banks The loans have been provided to
the group on an arms length basis and state the interest to be either 5% or 6% and also define the repayment
date The board consider the terms of this loan to be on par with markst rates at the time it was 1ssued as well
as bemg comparable 1o the loan it replaced




4 EMPLOYEES

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
£m Em
Staff costs (including Directors) compnse
Wages and salanes 190 211
Social secunty cosls 17 18
Long service leave costs . 02
Defined contribution pension costs 08 08
245 239
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
The average number of employees during the year was 483 488
5 DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
£m £m
Directors’ remuneration consists of
Emoluments 11 13
Benefits - 01
11 14

The Board has determined that the Directors ara the key management personnel
Fension contributions were paid in the year amounting to £4,000 (2013 £6,500)
The remuneration of the huighest paid Director, including benefits, was £351,000 (2013 £363,000)

The Directors, and therr close family members, are related parties of the Company Other than as disclosed
above there are no other transactions to report with the Directors or their close family members
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6 NET EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
£m £m
Exceptlonal operating {income) / expense:
Reorganisation and refinancing costs
Restructuring & refinancing costs 14 13
Restructuring - employee costs 01 11
Lease buy out and other property cosls 0.2 -
17 24
Profit on the sale of trade and fixed asseis of MPS Healthcare {0 4) -
Inveshgation and resolution of accounting wregularities and legal costs
ansing from histonic accounting irregulanties . 02
Release of unpaid green slips {0 4)
Net exceptional operating expenses 09 26

The main exceptional costs 1n the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2014 relate to the reorganisation and
refinancing of the HCL group in order remove the exlernal debt held with Australian banks The group made
a profit from the sale of trade and assets of MPS Healthcare totalling £0 4M in the UK and the release of time
expired provisions In Austrabia also totaling £0 4M There were also cosls for legal fees incurred defending
claims brought against the Company, costs to surrender a lease and employee termination expenses

The tax effect of the above excepttonal items 1s £nil (2013 £nit)

7 LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operatlons for the year has been arnived at after charging the follawing

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

28 Decaember 29 December

2014 2013

£m £m

Goodwlli and intangible assets imparrment (Notes 11 and 12) - a1

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12} 32 40

Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment {Note 13) ¢5 10

Hire of other assets - operating leases 14 10
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for

- audit of the Company's annual accounts - 01

- audit of the Company's subsidiaries 01 01

- lax advisory services 01 -

- previous auditor fees - 01
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8 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

Finance income Em £m

Gain on far value changes in denvative financial instruments 03 06

0.3 06

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

Finance expense Em £m
Exceptional finance expense

Advisers and other fees regarding refinancing 01 14

01 14

Bank loans and overdrafts 10 34

Amortisation of fees 04 07

Shareholder loan interest 1.0 -

Imputed interest on Loan Notes 08 03

Other 01 01

34 59

The Group does not apply cash flow hedge accounting to dervative financlal instruments Accordingly, all
changes in the farr values of derivative financial instruments are recognised In the Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income

Foer | 26



9 TAX BENEFIT

52 weeks 52 woeks

ended ended

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

£m £m

UK corpeoration tax - current year (0.1) {01}

Current tax credit {01) (0 1)
Deferred tax

Ongination and reversa! of temporary differences 14 -

14 -

Total tax charge/(benefit} on continuing operations 13 (a1)

The tax charge of £1 4m1s pnmarly a result of deferred tax assets no longer recognised in Austraha (Note

18)

The tax charge / (benefit) assessed for the period 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax In the

UK for the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2014 The differences are explained below

52 weaks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 December 29 December
2014 2013
£m £m
Loss before taxation {7 9) (22 9)
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21 49% (2013
23 25%}) "N (54)
Effacts of
Expanses not deductible for tax purposes 06 10
Tax losses utilised 10 33
Timing differences 01 18
De-recogmsed deferred tax assets 15 .
Impact of overseas tax rates {02) (0 8)
Total tax charge/{benefit) for the year 13 onH
Represented by
Tax on continuing operations 1.3 (0 1)
13 (0 1}
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10 DIVIDENDS
The Directors are not proposing an interim or final dividend for 2014 (2013 no intenim or fina! dividends)

11 GOODWILL

Total
£m

Cost’
At 30 December 2012 807
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (32}
At 29 December 2013 87.5
Disposals (3.3)
Effact of movements in forelgn exchange {0.5)
At 28 December 2014 B37
Impairment*
At 30 December 2012 735
Charge In the year 59
Effect of movements in forelgn exchange {30)
At 29 December 2013 76 4
Dsposals (2 6)
Effect of movements in forsign exchange {0 5)
At 28 December 2014 733
Carrylng amount*
At 28 December 2014 104
At 29 December 2013 111

The carrying amount is atiributabte to the following cash generating units ("CGUs") which are individual
businesses with separately Identifiable cash flows

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

£m £m

UK - Allied Health Professionals 20 20
UK - Nursing 84 91
Total 104 191

The two UK CGUs are reporied as separate segments to the chief operating decision maker

At 28 December 2014 goodwlli and intangible assets {Note 12) were tesled for mpairmant During 2014 the
Group reviewed and revised its budgeting and forecasting procedures and now routinely prepares both
base case figures, reflecting management expectations, and a second version ("the lower range budget”)
reflecting the impact of a range of faclors such as reduced revenue growth rates, reduced margins and
delays in new Initialives to boost revenues or reduce cosis The recoverable amounts of the above
segmenls, and the intangible assels, were determined from value In use calcutations based on cash flow
projections from the actual results post balance sheet for 2015 plus amounts forecasted for the remainder
of the year, lower range forecasts for 2016, 2017 and 2018 and estimates for subsequent years As a result
of this review the judgement of the board Is that there was no required impairrment of thase asseis This
Jjudgement 1s not considered sensitive

The company sold part of the UK nursing business dunng the year which resuited in the disposal of the
goodwill beienging to that business The net book value of this disposal totals £0 7m
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11 GOODWILL {continued)

in determining the rate consideration was glven to the Group weighted average cost of capital ("WACC"}
The key assumptions in the calculation of the WACC were

* Risk-free rate - 2 71 (2013 2 71%)

» Equity market risk premium - 7 3% (2013 7 3%)

+ Beta - 1079 (2013 1079)

* Small stock premium - 5 0% {2013 5 0%}

+ Gross cost of debt, inclusive of amortisation of fees, 12 88% (2013 12 88%)
* Expected long-term ax rate - 21% UK, 30% Australia {2013 21% and 30%)
+ Zero coupon loan notes discount rate 15 0% (2013 15 0%)

Use of those assumptions gave a pre tax WACC of 14 6% (2013 14 6%) which equates to a post-tax
WACC of 11 6% for the UK and 12 0% for Austraha {2013 11 6% and 12 0% respectively)

Reviewing the anticipated cost of the new funding being raised, as an indicator of the most up to date cost
of capital, suggested the WACC was not the most reliable basis for calculating the discount rate to use, and
as a result the calculations were done using a pre-tax discount rate of 14 6% in the UK and 15 0% in
Austraba (2013 14 6% and 15 0% respectively}

The assumphtions as to long term growth rates were 2 0% in the UK and 2 5% in Australia (2013 2 0% and
2 5% respectively) These rates are consistent with forecasts of economic growth In the respective
countrias
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12 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired
Customer Computer candidate Brandsand Non-compete
relationships software database trademarks agreements Total
£m £m Em £m £m Em
Cost
Al 30 December 2012 239 19 10 1 273 05 837
Additions . 07 - - - 07
Own costs capitalised - 03 - - - 03
Disposals - 01 » - 0N
Effect of movermnants in
forelgn exchange (2 9) {01) {13) (42) (0 1) (8 6)
At 29 December 2013 210 27 88 231 0.4 §6.0
Additions - 0.6 - - - 06
Own costs capitalised - 02 - - - 02
Disposals {12) - (12) {0 4) - (2 8)
Effect of movements in
_toreign exchange (0 4) - {02) {0.6) {01) {13)
At 28 December 2014 194 3.5 74 221 03 527
Amortisation
Al 30 December 2012 132 11 48 10 2 02 295
Provided for the year 16 03 10 10 01 40
impairment (Note 11) 06 - - 15 01 22
Oisposals - (0 1) - - - {0 1)
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange {(16) - 0" {19) {0 1) (4 3)
At 29 December 2013 138 13 51 108 0.3 313
Provided for the year 11 05 08 0.8 - 3.2
Disposals (0.9) - (0.9) {0.2) - {2.0)
Effect of movements in
foreign exchange {0 3} - {0 2) {0.3) . (0 8)
A\ 28 December 2014 137 18 43 11,1 03 n.z
Carrying amount.
At 28 December 2014 57 17 2.6 110 - 210
Al 29 December 2013 72 14 37 123 01 247

At 28 December 2014 computer software included £0 8m under construction (2013 £0 5m) The Group

amorlises Intangible assels from the date the assets are avalable for use

The assel lives of the material intangible asseis have been assessed at 20 years for brands and trademarks
and 10 years for the main acquired candidate database Customer relationships are amortised over the life of
the contracts As at 28 December 2014 the remaining amortisation perlod for Customer Relabionships & the
acquired Candidate Database was 6 years The amortisation pernod left for the Brands and Trademarks was

14 years
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Improvements Office and
to leasehold computer
bulldings equipment Total
Em £m Em

Cost
At 30 December 2012 19 30 49
Additians 03 0.1 04
Disposals (02) (07 (09)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (03 (0 1) (0 4)
At 29 December 2013 17 23 40
Additions 02 02 04
Disposals (0 2) {0.2) {0 4)
At 28 December 2014 17 2.3 4.0
Depreclation and Impairment
At 30 Decemnber 2012 05 21 28
Provided for the year 06 04 10
Disposals {02) 0N (09)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {01} - (D]
At 28 December 2013 08 1.8 2,6
Provided for the year 03 o2 05
Disposals {¢1) : {01)
At 28 December 2014 10 20 30
Carrying amount.
At 28 December 2014 07 03 1.0
At 29 December 2013 09 05 14

There are no assets included above held under finance leases

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28 December

29 December

2014 2013

Em £m

Trade recetvables 20.2 167
Other receivables 0.6 c2
Prepayments 1.2 13
Accrued Income 15 15
235 197

All amounts shown under recewables fall due for payment within one year The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables and the amounts denominated in currencies other than Slerling are set out in Nole 19 There
are no differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of the trade and other receivables at

either reporting date
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15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 Dacember

29 December

2014 2013

Em £m

Trade payables 03 04
Other taxes and social securiy 3.6 32
Accruals 54 64
Deferred income 03 03
Sales ledger credits 26 30
Amounts owed to related parites 04 04
Cther craditors a1 38
167 175

There are no differences between the carrying amount and the farr value of the trade and other payables at

eiher reporting date

16 LOANS AND LONG TERM BORROWINGS

28 December

29 December

2014 2013
Em £m
Current portion of long-term debt
Austrahan Dollar denominated
Secured bank loans - 13
Unamortised debt 1ssue costs . (06)
Total current borrowings 07
Non-current,
Stering denominated
Sharehgolder loans 17 6
Zero Coupon Loan Notes 20 17
8% Loan Notes 45 -
Australian Dollar denominated
Secured bank loans - 3086
Shareholder loans 204 -
Unamortised debt issus costs - [(*I))]
Total non-current borrowings 44.5 322

There are no differences between the carrying amount and the far value of the loans and long-term

borrowings al either date

The Group did not capitalise any fees during 2014 Fees are amortised using the effective interest method

over the terms of the respective loans

The Zero & 8% Coupon Loan Notes are stated at fair value, being the farr value recognised at the date of
Issue plus imputed interest to 28 December 2014 More detalls are set out in Note 19

The Shareholder Loans are stated at fair valus, being the fair value recognised at the date of 1ssue plus
imputed intarest to 28 December 2014 These loans exert a fixed and floating charge over Healthcare
Locums Limited and all of s subsidiary comparies The charge covers all assets (tangible & intangible) of
the companies, shares, Investment interests and intellectual property Also Angel Acquisltions Limited {the
parent company) became secunly trustee for the charges for the proportion of debt in the Australian banks

that was transferred to the shareholders
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17 PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Employee Total Deferred
benefits Leases provisions consideration
Em Em £m Em
At 30 December 2012 26 12 38 .
Charged/(credited) to Income statement - - - 02
Effect of movements In foreign exchange (G 4) {01) {05 -
At 29 December 2013 22 11 33 0.2
Movement during the year
Charged/(credited) lo income statement . {04 (0 4) (01}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (0 1) - (0 1) (0.1}
At 28 December 2014 21 0.7 28 .
At 28 December 2014
Current 18 - 18 -
Non-current 0.3 07 1.0 -
At 29 December 2013
Current 17 03 20 02
Non-current 05 g8 13 -

Employee benefits compnise long service leave benefits of £1 8m (2013 £1 9m} and prowvision for paid leave
of £0 3m (2013 £0 3m) relating to the employess, including locums, of the Australian operations

The lease provision represents the future payments to which the Group 1s committed on properties which
were vacated priar 1o 28 December 2014 and make good provisions on occupled properties The lengest
remaining lease term for any of the applicable properties expires an 30 April 2015 Dus to the relativaly short
timeframe and the amounis mvolved, the future payments have not been discounted as the impact would not

be significant
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION

Other short

Intangible term

Tax fixed tempaorary
losses assets differences Total
£m £Em £m £m
At 30 December 2012 (t6) 72 (23) 33
{Credited) / charged to profit or loss 13 (14) 03 02
Fareign exchange adjustiment {0 1) (0 9) 03 (07}
At 29 December 2013 {0 4) 4.9 17 28
(Credited) / charged to profit or loss {Note 9) - 1.2 0.2 14
Foreign exchange adjustment - {0.2) 01 (0.1}
At 28 December 2014 (0.4) 59 (1.4} 41

During the year, as a result of the changes in the UK corporation tax rate to 21% which was substantively
enacted on 2 July 2013 and was effective from 1 April 2014, and to 20% which wll be effective from 1 April
2015, the relevant deferred tax balances have been re-measured Deferred tax has therefore been
calculated on UK and Australian temporary differences al 20% and 30% respectively (2013 23 25% and
30% raspectively) In addition to the changes in rates of corporation tax disclosed above it was also
announced 1n the March 2015 Budget to maintain the rate at 20% from 1 Apnl 2016 These changes had
not been substantlvely enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not Included in these financial
statements The proposed reductions to the main rate of corporation tax are both expected to be enacted
as part of the Finance Act 2013 The overall effect of these funher changes, If applied to the deferred tax
balance at the balance sheet date, would be to further reduce the deferred tax hability by an additional
£41,000 (2013 £29,000)

The analysis of the net deferred tax balance between deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitles is as
follows

28 December 29 December

2014 2013
£m Em
Represented by deferred tax hability 41 28

There are unrecognised deferred lax assets in respect of the follewing items

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

£m £fm

UK {ax losses 69 80
Decelerated capital allowances 09 08
Australian tax losses 0.7 -
Australian capnal losses . 07
Total 85 1086

Deferred income tax assels are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits 1s probable The group did not recognise the deferred income tax assets
disclosed above None of the tax losses have an expiry date

There are no temporary differences in relation to unremitted earnings of overseas subsidianes
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial Instruments comprise shareholder loans, zero coupon loan notes, 8% coupon loan
notes, cash, trade and other receivables and payables Balances at the year-end for these financial

Instruments were as follows

Financlal assets

28 December 29 December

2014 2013
£m £m
Current financial assets.
Trade and other recervables excluding prepayments 223 18 4
Cash and cash equlvalents 8.6 49
Total current financial assets 309 233
Analysed by currency (GBP equivalent)
Pound Sterling 18.9 148
Australian Dollar 120 87
309 233

Financlal liabilities
measured at amortised cost

28 December 29 December

2014 2013
£m £m
Current financiat liabilittes
Trade and other payables excluding deferred income and taxes 128 14 0Q
Current portion of lang term borrowings . 07
Deferred conslderation - Q2
Taotal current financial iabilities 128 149
Non-current financial llabilities
Long term borrowings 44 5 322
Total non-current financial llabilties 44 5 322
Analysed by currency {(GBP equivalent),
Pound Sterling 314 R
Australian Dollar 259 372
573 47 1

Derivative financial liability
held at fair value through
profit or loss

28 Decembear 29 December

2014 2013
£m £m
Derivalive financial habilities - 06
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's bank loans, which had a balance of A$59 2m (£31 9m) at the end of 2013, were repaid in part
during 2014 The outstanding balance of the loan was purchased by the shareholders of Angel Acqulsitions
Limited Al the end of 2014 the balance on this loan 1s A$39 2m  In order to fund the part repayment and
professional fees assaciated with this refinancing, the Company borrowed the sum of £16 2m from the
shareholders of Angel Acquisitions Ltd  This loan bears interest at 6%

The Zero Coupon Loan Notes of nominal £5 1m (2013 £5 1m), which fail due in September 2021, bear no
interest, but the loan note agreement provides for the 1ssue of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes of up to
£125m (2013 £1 25m) In nominal value if the Group achieves certain EBITDA and enterpnise value targets
(See below for information on the fair value attributed to the Zero Coupon Loan Notes and the embedded
dervative ) In the 2013 Refinancing £5 1m nominal of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for £5 1m
of 8% Loan Notes

All 8% loan notes 1ssued as part of the funding agreement made In the refinancing of June 2013 included a
commitment to the banks that they would be converted to preference shares at the value of £2 for every £1
of loan nots plus any nterest accrued to the paint of conversion As the inltial intention upon 1ssue of the 8%
loan noles was always lo convert to preference shares they have been treated as equity and therefore are
not classed as financial instruments  Any 8% loan note 1ssue after the removal of the bank debt was no
longer liable to the conversion ctause and therefore have been treated as debt

It 1s, and has bean throughout ithe penod under review, the Group's policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken

The Group's activities expose It to a vanety of financial risks market risk {including currency risk, farr valus
interest rate risk and cash flow interest nsk), credit risk and bquidily nisk The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of thesa risks and they are summarised below

(a) Market risk

(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Group had a shareholder loan of A§32 2m outstanding as at 28 December 2014 which exposes the
Group to currency risk Tha loan has been held within the sub-group In Austraha which replaced the bank
term loan during 2014 and so forms part of the A$ net assets of that sub-group The Impact of movements
of the exchange rate of the A$ aganst Sterting on net assets passes through the lranslation reserve The
other assets are treated in the same manner

There is an A$ denominated Inter-company loan account between Healthcare Locums Limited and the
Australian sub-group which gives nise to exchange gains and losses booked i finance costs in the
Consclidated Statement of Comprehansive Incoms As at 28 December 2014 the amount of A§37 1m
(2013 A$12 2m) was recorded as a receivable balance in Healthcare Locums Limited At 28 December
2014 the rale of exchange was £1 = A$1 9161 (2013 £1 = A$18459)

As at 28 December 2014, 46% (2013 49%) of the total assets of the Group were held in subsidiary
companies outside the UK and denominated in currenctes other than Sterlng, principally in AS Group pohicy
1s not to hedge the nel nvestments in foreign oparations as it does not consider that the reduction In foreign
currency exposure warrants the cash flow nsk created from such hedging techniques

If Sterling had been 10% stronger against the A$ during the year ended 28 December 2014, with all other
vanables held constant, the post tax loss for the year would have been £ 0 40m lower (2013 post tax loss
£1 08m lower)

If Sterling had been 10% stronger against the A$ during the year ended 28 December 2014, with all other
vanables held constant, the credit to other comprehensive Income would have been £ 2 2m greater (2013
£1 86m lower credit)

{n} Interest rate risk

Marke! risk also arises from the Group's use of interest bearing financlal instruments, which expose the
Group to interest rate sk The Group finances its operations through a mix of equity, shareholder loans and
loan notes The bank loan 1ncluded In the financial statements in 2013 was settled duning 2014 and replaced
with loans received from the parents company's sharsholders The interest rate applicable to these new
loans is fixed and not alfected by changes of external interesi rate movements as such the group's interest
rate risk 15 significantly mitigated

The swap instruments that were Included in the hinancial statements during 2013 have been settled upon
the removal of the exiernal bank loans during 2014

{b) Creditrisk

Credit risk arises principally from the Group's trade receivables and 1s the nisk that the customer fails to
discharge its obligations in respect of the instrument The Group's exposure to credit risk is considered to be
insignificant due to the heavy weighting of its customer base 1n the UK towards NHS Trusts, Local
Authonties and other Government institutions and in Australia to public hospitals and health providers
Private sector customers are subject to cradil checking procedures prior to commencing trade with them
The quality, and hence the low risk, of the customer base Is also shown by the smalt amounts of overdue
debt None of the averdue balances of the Group are considered iImpaired
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group transacts with counlerparties which It considers to be creditworlhy Surplus cash was placed in a
Liguicity Fund managed by Aberdeen Asset Fund which reduced the credu risk

Upto1 1to2
month months »2 months
Current overdue overdue overdue
Trade debtors - 28 December 2014 £13 8m £4 4m £1.2m £0 8m
% of trade debt per ageing category -
28 December 2014 68 3% 218% 5 9% 4 0%
Trade debtors - 29 December 2013 £10 Om £4 1m £24m £0 2m
% of trade debt per ageing category — 29
December 2013 59 9% 24 5% 14 4% 1 2%

(c) Llgquidity nsk

Liguidity nsk artses from the Group's management of warking capital and the finance charges and principal
repayments on its debt instruments The Board receives regular cash flow projections

Liguidity risk arises prnnclpally from the valume of revenuea forecast and the potential for adverse outcomes
in litigation

The factors considered by the Board in assessing going concern are set out In Note 3(c) and the Financial
Review

The Group has a Liquidity Fund account managed by Aberdeen Asset Fund Liguidity Funds provide same
day access to the deposiled funds The Liqguidity Fund 1s rated AAA by S&P, whose rating criteria stipulates
that a minimum of 50% of the portfolio should be composed of A-1+ (or equivalent) instruments 1n order for
the fund to maintain a AAA rating The methodology S&P applies to calculate the A-1+ percentage counts
A-1 (or equivalent) rated instruments maturing in seven days or less towards the A-1+ percentage
mirtmums, as historical default rates on A-1 paper maturing within seven days are similar to the default
rates of A-1+ issuers By using such Funds counterparty nisk for the Group 1s reduced as the Fund invests In
a wide range of counterparlies

Gross, undiscounted liabilities are due as follows

Due within Due in Due n Over
1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years 5 years
. Em £m £m £m
2014 Non-derlvative financial
Instruments - cutflows
Long and short term borrowlngs . 380 - 65
Trade and other payables excluding
deferred income 128 - - -
Total 128 38,0 - 6.5
2013 Non-dervative financial instruments
- outflows
Long and short term borrowings c9 305 - 17
Trade and other payables excluding
deferred income 14 0 - - -
Total 14 @ 3056 - 17

The above tables summanse undiscounted cash flows based on the financial labilities of the Group
outstanding at the year-end and assuming no changes in Interest rates from the year-end rates There are
no financial iablilities payable on demand
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value estimation

In the optmion of the Board, the carrying amount of the financial assets and liabiities of the Group
approximate therr fair values There are no financial assets or liabilities held for trading purposes or any
investments classified as avallable-for-sale

£10,212,500 of Zero Coupon Loan Notes were 1ssued to Ares Lux as part of the Refinancing In September
2011 £5,106,250 of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes were exchanged for 8% Loan Notes on 4 June 2013 The
remainder are repayable in normal crcumstances in September 2021, or earller in the event of another
refinancing or a change of control of the Group The Directors have discountad the Zero Coupon Loan
Notes at 15%, a rate between the cost of the Group's senior debt and the cost of aguity immediately after
the Refinancing giving a fair value at the time of issue of £2,505,115 The imputed Interest s charged to
finance expenses from the date of 1ssue until the repayment date The charge in the year ended 28
December 2014 was £259,709 (2013 £321,118) The Loan Notes contain an embedded derivative as
additional Loan Notes, up to a maximum value of £1,250,000 (2013 £1,250,000), will be issued If the Group
achieves certain EBITDA targets in the years ended 28 Dacember 2014 andfor 2013, or If the Enterprise
Value at 29 December 2013 and/or 28 December 2014 and/or 03 January 2016 exceeds certaln target
amounts No value has been aitrbuted by the Directors to the embedded dervative at the time of 1ssue, at
29 Dacember 2013 or at 28 December 2014 as the Directors believe it 1s unhkely that these targets will be
met

The 8% loan noles were 1ssued by the parenl company, Angel Acquisitions Ltd, In four Instalments
throughout 2014 and are repayable in normal circumstances in September 2021 As well as the nterest
included on these loan notes the repayment terms also include a final payment of double the nominal value
provided at the date of Issue The Directors have discounted thase Loan Nales at 18 5% to incorporate the
repayment terms The imputed interest is charged to finance expenses from the date of issue untll the
repayment date The charge in the year ended 28 December 2014 was £465,939

Further loans were receved from the shareholders of Angel Acquisitions Ltd in 2014 Firstly £1 0m was
received far working capital requirements In July A further £16 2m was received in August to facilitate the
refinancing of the bank loans These “shareholder” loans are repayable by 31 December 2017 Interest on
the £1 Om loan I1s charged at 5% The interest on the £16 2m i1s 5% If settled and 6% If rolled up into the
loan

The fair value of the elght percent and Zero Coupon Loan Notes is based on management judgement and
as such falfs into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Capital nsk management

The Group considers its capital to comprise its ordinary share capital, share premium, other reserves and
accumulated retained earnings In managing its capital the Group’s long-term objective Is to ensure its
continued abrity to provide a growing return for its equity sharehalders through a combination of capital
growth and distnbutions

The facilities provided by the Group's bankers onginally included a number of financial covenants As the
bank debt was in existence for the first haif of 2014 these covenants were applicable and these covenani
tests were passed As at the end of 2014 there are no financial covenants applicable to the Group’s debt
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20 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorlsed
28 December 29 December 28 December 29 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
Number ‘000  Number '000 Em £m
Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 847,799 847,799 848 84 8
Preference share capital
Preference shares of 10p each 225,559 205,160 225 205

Allotted, called up and fully paid

28 December 29 December 28 December 29 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Number '000  Number '000 £m Em
Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 847,799 847,799 848 B4 8
Preference share capital
Preference shares of 10p each 225,559 205,160 225 205

Holders of the preference shares shall receive, when the reserves allow, a cumulative 8% dividend The
dividend I1s payable in the event of winding up, other return of capital, or on redemption The redemption is
entirely within the discretion of the company and can be delayad until lquidation Consequently as per |IAS
32 the preference shares are classed as equity

20 4m of 10p preference sharas were 1ssued to Angel Acquisitions Ltd during the year on converting

£2 04m of 8% loan notes

21 RESERVES

The share premium account represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of the nominal value
of the shares 1ssued

The equity reserve represents the farr value adjustment betwsen the value of preference shares Issued and
cansideration recewed

The translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial
statemenis of forelgn operalions that are integral to the operations of the Group

The retained loss reprasents the cumulative profit or loss recagmised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, as adjusted for subsequent transfers (o or from other reserves
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22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims and hitigation

From ttme to time the Group and Company are in receipt of claims from customers and employees ansing
in the normal course of business

The following disclosures are made In connection with claims or exposures which the Directors consider
could represent material uncertainiies

Litigation - Permian et al

In September 2013 default jJudgment was obtained against the Company in respect of claims by vanous
US inveslors that they had been induced to invest in and/ar retain securities 1ssued by HCL or instruments
linked to those securniies on the basis of knowing or reckless misrepresentations by the Company and Its
former directors concerning the Company's accounting practices and operating results The Company
had been advised by English Leading Counsel and by Australian Counsel that securing a default judgment
in the US was highly unlikely to result in any judgment being recognised or enforceable in either the UK or
Australia because of lack of jurisdiction At present, the Company I1s aware that a $7 1m liability sum has
been registered against it by the plaintff Privet Capital and a $13 1m judgement has been registered
against it by Permian As the Company has not submitted to the US jurisdiction or participated i the
litigation, It 1s not aware if further sums have been registered against it by any of the other claimants The
Board continues to hold the opinion that the claims are without mernt

Potential clalm - Ms Kate Bleasdale

On 16 April 2013 the Board raceived a letter from solicitors instructed by Ms Bleasdale, the former
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company, giving notice of a potential claim pursuant to section 994 of the
Companies Act 2006 The lstter alleged that Ms Bleasdale's position as a shareholder of HCL had been
unfairty prejudiced by virtue of the events that led to the suspension of trading in HCL's shares in January
2011 and the subsequent restructuring in September 2011

As a result of these actions, Ms Bleasdale asserted thal HCL should purchase her current shareholding at
a price of £1 12 per share being the share price immediately prior to its suspension in January 2011, &
cost of approximately £2 24m

Having taken legal advice, the Board considers that Ms Bleasdale's claim 1s wholly without ment and the
Company's legal advisers wrote to Ms Bleasdale's solicitors explaining why that i1s the case

The Company I1s confidant of its position \n respect of thase claims and no provision has bean mada in the
Financial Statements for future legal cosis or for any settlement or adverse determination arising from this
Iitigation

As well as the specific materlal contingent iabilities set out above, the Group’s princtpal risks and
uncerfainlies are set out In the statement on Principal Risks and Uncertainties on page 4to 5

23 PENSIONS

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes in the UK and Auslralla There were no
outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year

24 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

As at 28 December 2014 the Group had total commiiments under non-cancellable operating leases as set
out below

Land and buildings Other

28 December 29 December 28 December 29 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m Em £m

Opaerating lease commitments

payable

Under 1 year 16 22 01 01
1-2 years 15 27 - 01
2 - 5 years 26 34 - -
Qver § years 01 14 - .
58 97 01 02

The leases on land and bulldings range from two months to four years and elght months nlength The
operaling leases described as "olher” are mainly for cars and normally have a lifetime of three years
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The parent company Angel Acquisilions 1s directly owned by Ares Capital and Tosca fund Therefore any
transactions with these entitiss are deemed as related

Ares Capital Europe has charged £40k (2013 £20k) for the services of Michael Denmis and Daniel Sinclair
as Directors The services of Mark Phillips, who served as a direclor and 1s connected to Tosca fund, were
also charged to the accounts totalling £40k (2013 £20k)

Ares holds the Zero Coupon loan Note included on the balance shest The farr value of the Zero Coupon
Loan Notes at 28th December 2014 was £2 0m (2013 £17m) Note 16

The Shareholder loans are jointly owned by Ares Capital and Tosca fund These loans were issued duning
2014 and total £38m at the end of the accounting period Note 18

The key management personnel, whose costs are disclosed in Note 5, being Directors of the Company are
considered to be related parties Note 5 includes all the relevant disclosures of those related party costs
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Healthcare Locums Ltd

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 28 DECEMBER 2014

28 Dacember

29 December

2014 2013
Notes Em £m
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 28 1.5 13
Property, plant and equipment 29 05 04
Investments 30 38 56
5.8 73
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 32 181.4 880
Cash and cash equivalents 52 25
186.6 1005
Total assets 192.4 107 8
LIABILITIES
Current llahllities
Trade and other payables 33 {141 6) (716 0)
Provisions for Llabilittes 34 - (0.2)
{141 6) (76 2)
Total assets less current liabilities 508 316
Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year
Sharsholder loans 35 {17 6) -
Zero coupon lgan notes 35 {2 0) (17)
8% loan notes 37 {4 5) -
Provisions for liabilities 34 {0 3) {0 4)
(24 4) (2 1)
NET ASSETS 264 295
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 38 107 3 1053
Share premwwm account 39 55.2 552
Equity reserve 39 (14 9) (129}
Retamned loss 20 {121.2) {118 1)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 264 295

The Notes are an Integral part of these Financial Staiements

The Financial Statements of Healthcare Locums Limited, registered number 04736913, were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

M KetchinZ
Director
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26 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The policies adopled are consistent with those applled in the preparation of the audited accounts for the 52
weeks ended 29 December 2013

The following principal accounting policies have been applied
(a) Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts earned from the provision of services to external customers during the
reporting period = the time of provision of services being the point at which the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and when it 1s probable that the economic benefits wlll flow to the Company Turnover s
staled at invoiced amounts less valus added tax or local taxes on sales, plus revenus sarned but unbilled
which 1s included as acerued ingome in recelvables

* Turnover from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the services of lemporary staff,
18 recognised when the services have been provided Turnover includes the salary costs of the temporary
staff unless paid directly by the client in which case lurnover represents commssion only

* Turnover from permanent placements 1s recognised at the date when a candidate cornmences work
Appropriate provision 1s made for the expected cost of meeting obligations where employees do not work
for the specified contractual psriod

(b) Depreciation
Depreciation 15 provided to write off lhe cost, less estimated residual values, of all intangible and tangible
fixed assets, evenly over ther expected useful lives It1s calculated at the following rates

Improvements to leasehold

buildings - Tarmof lease
Office and compuler eguipment - 3tloByears
Computer software - 3to5years

(c) Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have
besn enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date

In accordance with FRS 19, deferred tax 1s provided in full on tming differences which result in an
obhgation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a fulure dats, at rates
expected to apply when they crystallise based on current rates and law Timing differences arise from the
inclusion of items of Income and expenditure in taxalion computations In periods diferent from those in
which thay are included in financral statements Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are not
discounted

(d) Valuation of investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impalrment

(e) Goodwill

Purchased goodwiil In respect of the acquisitions of trade and assets of a business 1s capitalised Goodwill
Is amortised to nll by equal annual instalments over its estimated useful life

{f) Impairment

The Dilrectors carry oul impairment reviews annually or whenever an indication of impairment has been
identified Imparment charges are recorded In the Profit and Loss account

The valuation of investments in subsidiary undertakings is calculated by reference to estimated future cash
flows of the relevant company discounted using an appropnate, risk adjusted, rate

(g) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership ('finance
leases’), he assels are freated as if thay had been purchased outnght The amount capitalised is the
present value of the mimmum lease payments payable durning the lease term The corresponding leasing

commitments are shown as amounts payable to the lessor Depreciation on the relevant assels 1s charged
to the Profit and Loss account

Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the Interest element of the
payment Is charged to the Profit and Loss account over the period of the iease and represents a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding The capital part reduces the amounts
payable to the lessor

All other leases are treated as operating leases Therr annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-ine basts over the term of the lease
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26 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Foreign exchange

Turnover generated and costs incurred by the Company In @ currency other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates |s recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur Foreign currency monetary assets and llabilitles are retranslated at the rates ruling at each balance
sheet date Exchange differences ansing are recogrised immediately in the Profit and Loss account

(l) Penslon costs

Contributlons te the Company's defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss
account in the year in which they become payable

{}) Financial instruments

The Company uses Interest rate swap instruments to manage the Group’s interest rate nsk These
financial Instruments are not racognised on the Balance Sheet of the Company Receipts or payments
rasulting from thase interast rate instruments are accounted for within Profit and Loss In the perled during
which the receipls or payments arise

(k} Provisions and contingent llabilities

The Group policy for provisions and contingent habilities, s set out in Note 3(p), apples equally to the
Company which has the same policy

27 LOSS FOR THE YEAR
The loss after tax for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the Company amounts to £3 1m

(2013 £8 0m) As allowed by the provisions of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has
not published its own Profit and Loss account
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28 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software Total
£m Em
Cost
At 30 December 2012 0B 08
Additions 09 09
At 29 December 2013 1.7 1.7
Additions 0.6 0.6
At 28 December 2014 23 23
Amortisation
At 30 December 2012 03 03
Provided for the year 01 01
At 29 December 2013 04 04
Provided for the year 04 0.4
At 28 December 2014 08 08
Net book value'
At 28 December 2014 15 15
At 29 December 2013 13 13
29 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Improvements Offlce and
to leasehold computer
buildings equipment Total
£m £m Em
Cost’
At 30 December 2012 03 07 10
Additions - 01 01
Disposals - {0 1) o1
At 29 December 2013 03 07 10
Additions o1 02 03
Disposals {0.2) {01} (0.3)
At 28 December 2014 02 08 10
Depreciation,
At 30 December 2012 - 06 08
Provided for the year 01 01
Disposals - {0 1) (01)
At 29 December 2013 - 06 06
Provided for the year - 0.1 0.1
Disposals (01 {01} {0 2)
At 28 December 2014 (01) 0.6 0.5
Net book value
At 28 December 2014 03 02 05
At 29 December 2013 ¢3 01 04
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30 INVESTMENTS

Shares in
subslidiary
undertakings
Em
Caost
At 30 December 2012 564
At 29 December 2013 56.4
At 28 December 2014 564
Impalirment
At 30 December 2012 508
At 29 December 2013 508
Charged in the year 1.8
At 28 December 2014 5286
Net bock value
At 28 December 2014 3.8
Al 29 December 2013 56

During the year the trade and fixed assets of MPS Healthcare wers sold to a third party leaving this
subsidiary effectively non-trading As such this investment of £1 8m has been impaired to a zero balance

as it no longer has any future cash flows
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31 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The principal undertakings In which the Company has an interest at the year-end are as follows

Name Nature of business

HCL Doctors Limited On framework supply of professional health services of
statutorily registered doctors

HCL Healtheare Limited On framework supply of professlonal health services of
health professionals and ancillary staff

HCL Nursing Limited On framework supply of professional health services of
statutorlly registered nurses

HCL. Social Care Limited (a) On framework supply of professional heallh services of

social workers

JCJ Locums Limited Off framewoark supply of professional health services of
statutorlly ragistered doctors, nurses, soclal workers, health
professionals and ancillary staff

HCL Permanent Limited Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basis
HCL Managed Services Limited (b} Supply of managed services to the healthcare market
HCL 100B Limited (Formerly MPS Supply of professional health services of statutorlly
Healthcare Limited) registerad medical staff The trade in this company ceased !
at the end of 2014
Recrutment Specialist Group Limited Holding company
HCL GPs Limiled Supply of professional health services of statutority
registerad doctors
HCL Duba Limited Non trading
BBL Medical Recrutment Limited Non trading
MJV Locums Limited Non trading
Nurselink Worldwide Limited Non trading
JCJ Group Limited Naon trading
JCJ Holdings Limited Non trading :
HCL Internatronal Inc Non trading
BGI Heldings Limited Non trading
Farrstaff Agency Limited Dormant '
Soclal Work Professionals Limited Dormamnt
JCJ Dormant Limiled Dormant
Bluetec Recruitment Lirmited (a} Dormant
Bluecare Recruitment Holdings {(a) Dormant
Limited
Bluecare Recrultment Limited Dormant \
HCL International Pty Limited Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basls
Healthcare Australia Holdings Pty (¢} Holding company for Australian subsidiary undertakings
Limited {"HCA"}
Healthcare Australia Pty Limited (c) Pnncipal subsidiary of Healthcare Australla Holdings Pty
Ltd
Acclaim Recruitment Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
ASEPS Pty Limited {d) Nursing Agency
Care Services Admin Pty Limited (d) Admin staff for the business
Goongee Pty Limited (d} Nursing Agency
Malvern Payroll Management {d) Nursing Agency
Services Pty Limited
NT Medic Pty Limlted (d) Nursing Agency
Nursing Agency Australia Pty Limited  (d) Nursing Agency
PNS {PCC) Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
PNS (Slaffing Synergy) Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
PNS (Vic) Pty Limited (d) Nursing Agency
Salect Unit Trusl (d} Nursing Agency

All subsidiaries are 100% owned by HCL other than those marked
(a) owned 100% by Biue Group International Holdings Limitad,
(b} owned 100% by JCJ Group Limited,

(¢c) owned 100% by HCL International Pty Limited, and
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31 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS {continued)

(d) owned 100% by HCA

All 100% share ownarships also represent 100% of the voling nghts

All subsidiznes operate \n the United Kingdom and are registered in England and Wales other than HCL
International Pty Limited and subsidiaries thereof which are registered in Australia The table above
exciudes dormant subsidianes in the United Kingdom and United States All companies have been
included in the conselidated resuits of the Group

The following subsidiaries are exampt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the
audit of individual accounts by virtue of s479A of that Act

Name

HCL Doclors Limited

HCL Healthcare Limited

HCL Nursing Limited

HCL Somal Care Limited

JCJ Locums Limited

HCL Permanent Limited

HCL Managed Services Limited

1008 Limited {formerly MPS Healthcare
Limited)

Recrutment Specialist Group Limited
HCL GPs Limited

Nurselink Worldwide Limited

JCJ Group Limited

MJV Locums Limited

BBL Medical Recrutment Limited

JCJ Holdings Limited

HCL Dubal Limited

Blue Group International Holdings Limited

Registered number

3068773
3496076
5980817
3710864
5790018
5790004
2273072

3985591
3216930
5130842
5804412
4469671
7305911
5716382
4402407
5755169
4171692

The above subsidiaries’ outstanding labilities at 28 December 2014 had been guaranteed by the
Carmpany pursuant to sections 479A-C of the Act

32 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28 Decamber 29 December

2014 2013

Em £m

Other debtors o1 01
Prepayments 0.8 08
Amounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 180.5 97 0
181 4 98 0

The nat amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest
All other amounts shown within trade and other recervables fall due for payment within one year

33 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

28 December 29 December

2014 2013

£m £m

Trade creditors 0.2 1
Amounts due to subsidiary undartakings 138 8 734
Other taxes and soclal security 0.5 04
Accruals 15 23
Other creditors 06 (02)
1416 760
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All amounts due o subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any intersst

34 PROVISIONS AND DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Onerous Onerous Total

contracts leases provisions

£m £m £m

At 30 Dacamber 2012 03 08 11

Charged / {credited) to profit & loss {0 3) {0 2) (05)

At 29 December 2013 - 0.6 06

Charged / {credited) to profit & loss - {0.3) (0 3}

At 28 December 2014 . 0.3 03
At 28 December 2014

Nan-current - 0.3 03
At 29 December 2013

Current - 02 02

Neon-current - 04 04
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35 SHAREHOLDER LOANS

28 December

29 December

2014 2013

£m £m

Fair value of notes Issued during the year 172 -
Impuled interest in the year 04 .
Fair value at the end of the year 176 -

Detalled information on the terms and conditicns of the shareholder loans are given in Note 18 on page 38

36 ZERO COUPON LOAN NOTES

28 December

29 December

2014 2013

Em £m

Fair value at the beginning of the year 1.7 30
Fair value of notes redeemed - (186)
Imputed interest in the year 0.3 03
Fair value at the end of the year 2.0 17

Dataded information on the terms and conditions of the 8% loan notes are glven in Note 18 on page 38

37 8% LOAN NOTES

28 December

29 December

2014 2013

Em £m

Farr value at the beginring of the year - -
Fair value of notes issued 40 -
Imputed interest in the year 05 -
Fair value at the end of the year 4.5 .

Detalled information on the terms and conditions of the 8% loan notes are glven in Note 19 on page 38
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38 SHARE CAPITAL

All details of the allotted, called up and fully paid share capital, plus the movements during the pnor year,

are sel out in Note 20 to the Group Financial Statements

39 RESERVES

Share Share Profit and

premium option Equity loss

account reserve reserve account

Em Em Em Em

At 30 Decamber 2012 552 12 - {111 3)

Profit/{loss) for the year - {12 9) (8 0)

Share option reserve transferred - {12) 12

At 29 December 2013 552 - (12 9) (118 1)

Profit/{loss) for the year - - {2 0) {3 1)

At 28 December 2014 55,2 . (14.9) (121 2)
40 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

52 weoks 52 weeks

ended ended

28 29

December December

2014 2013

£m £m

Loss far the year (3 1) {6 8)

Loan notes classified as equity and then converted to preference shares 20 606

Loan notes classified as equity (2.0) 10

Share option resarve cessation - {12)

Add Opening shareholders’ funds 295 209

Closing shareholders’ funds 264 285

41 PENSIONS

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme There were no outstanding or prepawd

contnbutions at either the beginning or end of the flnancial year

42 COMMITMENTS UNDER QPERATING LEASES

As at 28 December 2014, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set

oul below

Land and buildings

Other

28 December

29 December

28 December

29 December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Em £m Em Em

Operating Lease commitments payable
Under 1 year 01 02 - -
1-2 years - - 01 01
2 - 5 years 01 g2 - -
Over 5 years 0.5 10 - -
07 14 0.1 01




43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

See Note 25 to the Group Financial Statements for transactions with and kalances due from and to related
parties All the reported transactions were with the Company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Financial Reporting Standard 8 "Related
Party Disclosures” not to disclose transactions with members of the Group headed by the Company on the
grounds that 100% of the voting rights In the other membaers of the Group are controlled by the Company and the
results of all subsidiary undertakings are included in the Group Financial Statements

44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the main material contingent liabilities for the Company are set out In Note 22 In addition the Company
Is party to the SFA and, as a result, 1s a guarantor of all borrowings of the Group Detalls of Group borrowings
are disclosed in Note 16

As set out in Note 31 the Company has guaranteed the habilites at 28 December 2014 of the named UK
subsidlary undertakings The amounts receivable from subsidianes at 28 December 2014, as set out In Note 32,
have besn )mpared where there 15 a possibility that full settlement of group indsbtedness will not be possible If
external habiities are settled 1n full

45 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

Angel Acquisihons Lid, which at 28 December 2014 was the ultimate Parent Company, Angel Acquisitions Ltd, is
registered in England and Wales The ultimate controling parties are ACE Equity Holdco (Cayman) Ltd (ARES)
and Tosca Opportunity which are the shareholders of Angel Acquisitions
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